Shridhar & Associates

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mumbai Metro One Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31% March 2022, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March 2022, and
profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

SR | Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed
No

1 COVID 19 and its impact on the operations during 2021-22 | Our audit procedures included the

The World Health Organization in Febroary 2020 declared following;

COVID 19 as a pandemic. Governments around the world | e Obtained an understanding of the
including India have taken significant measures to curb the Company’s internal controls over
spread of the virus including imposing mandatory lockdowns its forecasting process;

and restrictions in activities. Consequent to the above and on
account of the second wave, the operations of Mumbai Metro
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One Pvt. Ltd operated with reduced passenger and other
restrictions during the major part of the year.

The company was also not able to realize the full rental from
lessee, and consequently rental receipts up to an average of
50% were waived off,

These lockdowns along with other restrictions have a
significant impact on the overal economic activity in India
and in particular on the passenger transport industry.
Accordingly, the future cash flow projections, probability of
loan recast ete. used to assess going concern assumption is
subject to significant estimation uncertainties.

In view of the above along with the financial position of the
company, we have identified our assessment of the loss of
revenue due to Covid 19 impact as a key audit matter.

* Compared the key assumptions
adopted by the Company in
preparing the forecasted cash
flows for 2021-22 with our
expectations based on actual cash
flows of 2021.22.

¢ Verified  the correspondence
between the company and lessee
for waiver of rental receipfts.

* Verified the monthly MIS to

gauge the impact of Covid 19
assumptions. o

2. | Defanlt in Loan Repayments.

Refer Note No.13 in the Financial Statemenis

The Company has not been able to camply with the financial
covenants during the year in respect of non-paynment of Rs.
128.37 crores towards installments of repayment of principal
amount of loans and Rs. 786.34crores towards interest and
Rs.23.95 crores towards penal interest for the period from
April 2018 to March 2022, Accordingly, the loans have been
classified as current in the financial statements,

The company is in active consultation with the banks for
resolution plan.

We have identified the default in loan payments as a Key
Audit matter based on the amount involved, FIR rate etc.

Audit  procedures included the

following:
* We evaluated the working as per
Ind As 109.

* We assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures,

Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We also draw your attention to Note 27 of the financial statement, which indicates that the company

has incurred a net loss of Rs. 390.35
date the company®s current Hability
worth.

Crores during the year ended 314
continues to exceed its current assets thereby eroding its net

March 2022 and as of thai

These events and conditions along with the other matters indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concerri, However,
the financial statements of the company have been prepared on a going concern basis in view of the

mitigating factors as stated in note no, 27,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
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on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control refevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work and(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

e} The matter described in the material uncertainty related to going concern section above, in our
opinion, may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the company.

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

g} With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in ‘Annexure’.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note No. 26 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses
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ili. There has been no amount, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(B) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors® Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm’s Registration No. 134427W

Jitendra Sgjiany

Partner .
(Membership No. 050980}
Place: Mumbai

Date:11™ May, 2022

UDIN: 22050980AIUXQA8729
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Annexure ‘A’ to Auditors’ Report
[Referred to in our Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Mumbai Metro One
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022]

(1} (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of its fixed assets included within the intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular Program of physical verification of its fixed assets, by which

(©)

(d)
(e)

all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed assets
has been physically verified by the Management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the book records and the physical assets were noticed on such
verification,

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records examined by us; we report that, the title of the land does not
reside in the name of the company; it belongs to the Mumbai Metropolitan Region
Development Authority (MMRDA) and has been provided to the company for the project.
The Immovable Properties, included within the Intangible Assets, are constructed by the
company and the rights (titles) on the same are governed by the concession agreement
dated 7" March 2007 between the MMRDA and the Company until the end of the
concession and upon the expiry of the concession period (i.e. till August 2043) the
company is required to handover all the project assets back to the MMRDA.

The company has not revalued the Property, Plant and Equipment.

The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

(i) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our

opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on
physical verification of inventory as compared to book records were not more than 10% or
more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

(iif)

(iv)

in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to any company, firm, limited liability
partnerships or other party covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act .

Based on the information and explanations given to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and
186 of the Act, to the extent applicable.
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)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning the directives issued by
the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed there under.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 and the rules framed there under.
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the company pursuant to the
Company’s (Cost records & Audit) Rules,2014 as amended prescribed by the Central
Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of The Companies Act 2013 and we are
of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally
regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, cess and other
material statutory dues as applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed dues in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, duty of customs, goods
and services tax and cess as at March 31, 2022 which were outstanding for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, disputed dues of income-tax, sales-tax, works contract tax, service-tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax as at March 31, 2022 are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amounting | Period to which the | Forum where

statute dues in Rs. amount relates the dispute is
pending

Income Tax { TDS 10,59,800 AY 2014-15 AQ

Payable

Income Tax | Disallowance | 3,17,465 AY 2018-19 CIT (A)

Payable

There is dispute on account of municipal taxes and octroi raised by Municipal Corporation of Greater
Mumbai (MCGM) amounting to Rs. 134,16 crores.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the
records of the Company, no income has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year.
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(viii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or bank or dues to
debenture holders except for the following instances of defaults in repayment of
principal and interest amount.

Sr | Name of the lenders Amount of defaults as | Period of default as
No at March 31, 2022 at 31 March, 2022
(Rs. in Crores)
A. | Due to Financial Institutions | Principal Interest
1 Indian Infrastructure Finance | 128.37 155.19 | Apr 2018 to Mar
Company (UK) Limited 2022

B. | Dues to Banks

I Canara Bank - 24509 1 Apr 2018 to Mar
2022

2 Indian Bank - 190.10 | Apr 2018 to Mar
2022

3 Bank of Maharashtra - 84.44 Apr 2018 to Mar
2022

4 State Bank of India - 73.29 Apr 2018 to Mar
2022

5 IDBI Bank - 38.23 Apr 2018 to Mar
2022

The company has not issued any debentures.

{b) The Company is not declared a willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other
lender.

{¢) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
Offer (including debt instruments) and in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us,the term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they
were raised.

(d) As explained t us no funds were raised on short term basis have been utilized for long term
purposes.

(e} Asexplained to us the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) As explained to us the company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
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(x)(a) The company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(Including debt instruments) during the year,

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or
fraud on the Company by its officers and employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(b) As explained to us no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) As explained to us no whistle-blower complaints were received during the year.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties
are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of
related party transactions as required by the applicable accounting standards have been
disclosed in the financial statements,

(xiv)  (a) During the year, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business;

(b) The Internal Audit report for the period under audit were considered.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.,

(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to

be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xvi}) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvil) According fo the information and explanations given to us, the company has incurred
cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. |
(xviii} There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. !

(xix) According to the explanation and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected ?
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dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans, we are of the opinion that a material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date; refe note no. 27.

(xx) The company has a CSR committee as per section 135

(xxi) The company is not a holding company and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For SHRIDHAR & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No 134427W

Jifendra Sawjiany

Partner

(Membership No. 050980)
Place: Mumbai

Date:11* May, 2022
UDIN: 220509280AI1UXQA8729
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Annexure — B to Auditor’s report

[Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in paragraph “14(g)” under the
heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date on the
financial statements of Mumbai Metro One Private Limited for year ended March 31,2022.]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Mumbai Metro One
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our
audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness,

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
Error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations’ of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered accountants of India.

For and on behalf of
SHRIDHAR AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0134427W

J itendrafgéwjiany'

Partner

Membership number: 050989

Place: Mumbai

Date:11™ May, 2022

UDIN: 22050980AIUXQA8729
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Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Balance Sheet
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note As at March 31,2022 As at March 31, 2021
No.
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(2) Intangible asset 5 2,52,212.98 2,62,073.33
(b) Firancial assets
{i) Loans 6 9.20 12.86
(i) Other financial assets 7 66.19 114.88
{¢) Other non-current assets 8 258.10 212.51
Total non-current assets 2,52,546.47 2,62,413.58
Current assets
(a)} Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 534.41 105.30
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 1G 205.41 117.00
(iii) Leans B 3.44 3.1
(iv) Other financiai assets 7 0.07 0.73
(b) Other current assels 8 1,037.85 487.81
Total current assets 1,781.28 713.75
Total assets 2,54,327.75 2,63,127.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a} Equity share capita) 11 51,200.00 51,200.00
{b) Other equity 12 {1,78,970.98) {1,39,936.03)
Total equity (1,27,770.98) (88,736.03)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
{i} Borrowings 13 13,881.98 12,399.51
(ii) Other financial liabilities 16 §77.20 958.2%
{b) Provisions 17 12,156.57 12,174.63
Total non-current liabilities 26,915.75 25,532.43
Current liabilities
(a} Financiai liabili{ies
(i) Borrowings 14 2,24 B74.90 2,23171.93
(i} Trade payabies 15
- lotal outslanding dues af
micro enterprisas and smalf enterprises 117.98 549.95
- iotal ouistanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,111.67 3.808.17
(it} Other financial liabilities 16 1,24,455.88 97,147.54
{b) Provisions 17 186.88 194,75
{c) Other curzent liabililies 18 2,635.59 1,460.58
Total current liabilities 3,55,162.98 3,26,330.93
Total liabilities _ 3,82,098.73 3,51,863.36
Total equity and liabilities 2,54,327.75 2,63,127.33
Significant accounting policies 3
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1-38).
In terms of our repert attached
For Shridhar & Associates For #\d on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 134427W
Jitendra Sawjiany S?luf:hodf)'y hﬁlkherjee - S.V.R. Srinivas
Pariner Whaole-time Qirector Director
Membership No. 050980 DIN : 65151354 DIN : 028606903
Murnbai, dated: May t1, 2022 ]
Virendrk Joshi Shivprakash Singh
Chief Mpanctal Officer Company Secrelary

Membership No. AC59245

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022
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Mumbai Meiro One Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

{I) Revenue from operations 19 14,869.93 5,126.47
{1} Other income 20 83.96 1,115.96
(I} Total Income (I-+I} 14,953.89 6,242.43
(IV) Expenses
Operating expenses 21 4,739.59 3,957.70
Employee benefits expense 22 5,836.31 3,660.26
Finance costs 23 30,499.22 27.824.05
Amortisation expense 5 11,372.09 11,308.37
Other expenses 24 1,941.16 1,634.45
Total expenses {IV) 54,388.37 48,282.83
Loss before exceptional items for the {39,434.48) {42,040.40)
year {ill-IV)
Exceptional items
-Exceptional Income on account of 25 564.62 -
reversal of creditors for capital
expenditure
Loss after exceptional items for the 564.62 -
year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit and loss
- Remeasurements of net defined 33 (165.09) 71.53
henefit plans : (loss)/gain
Other comprehensive {loss)income . {165.08) 71.53
Total comprehensive loss (39,034.95} (41,968.87)
Earnings per share 31
{a) Basic earnings per share (7.59) (8.21)
{b) Diluted earnings per share (7.59) {8.21)
Significant accounting policies 3

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1-38).
in terms of our report attached

For Shridhar & Associates For apd on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 134427W

Jitendra Sawjiany Shuljhode¥ Mukherjee
Partner Whole-time Director
Membership No. 050980 DIN : 05151354

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022
Virendsh Joshi
Chief Ffhancial Officer

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022

8.V.R. Srinivas
. Director

DIN : 02860903

Shivprakash Singh
Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS9245




Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
lLoss for the year {39,034.95) {41,968.87}
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible asset 11,372.09 11,306.37
Finance costs recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 30,499.22 27,824.05
Interest income recegnised in Statement of Profit and Loss (1.34) (20.24)
Provision for additional liability towards capital expenditure/ reversal of
liabilities {net) - 0.05
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) 171.83 {433.15)
3,006.85 (3,291.78)
Movements in working capital:
Adjustments for {increase)/decrease in operating assets
Loans 3.34 1141
Other financial assets 40.14 452.48
Other current assets (388.66) 14.26
Trade receivables (429.11) 391.84
Adjustments for increase/f{decrease) in operating liabilities
Other financial liabilities {31.08) 27.16
Provisions {25.83) (22.39)
Other current liabilities 1,174.99 437.20
Trade payables (1,126.49) 2,171.30
Cash generated from operations 2,224.15 191.48
Income taxes paid {net} (207.27) 163.82
Net cash generated from operations 2,016.88 355.30
Cash flows from investing activities
Payment to capital creditors (net} {1,889.92) {348.36)
Investment in fixed deposits including margin money (net) 8.55 {0.23)
interest received 2.00 20.63
Net cash generated from investing activities (1,879.37) {327.96)
Cash flow from financing activities
Praceeds from long-term horrowings - -
Repayment of long-term borrowings (8.77} {5,506.24)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings - -
Repayment of short-term borrowings - -
Finance costs paid {40.33) (186.50)
Net cash used in financing activities (49.10) {5,692.74)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 88.41 (5,665.40)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 117.00 5,782.40
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 205.41 117.00




Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
{Rs. in Lakhs)

Notes:

1. Reconciliation of liabilities arising out from financing activities

Particulars As at April 1, Cash flows Non-cash changes As at March
2021 \ Fair value 31, 2022
Foreign exchange
changes
movement )
1,82,013.75 (8.77) 1,511.74 1,482.48 | 1,84,899.20
Long-term borrowings
As at April 1, Cash flows Non-cash changes As at March
2020 . Fair value 31, 2021
Foreign exchange
changes
movement
1,87,665.62 (5,506.24) {1,469.47) 1,323.84 | 1,82,013.75

2. Cash balances not available for use : Fixed deposits have been given as margin money for loans taken and bank

guarantees Rs. 3.05 lakhs {previous year 11.60

Significant accounting
policias

lakhs) (Refer note 7)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1-38).

In terms of our report attached

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 134427W

Jitendra Sawjiany
Partner
Membership No. 050980

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022

For apd on behalf of Board of Directors

ShubMetioy Mukherjes S.V.R. Srinivas

WhHtle-time Director
DIN : 05151354

Virendfh Joshi
Chief Financial Oificer

Director
DIN : 02860903

Shivprakash Singh
Company Secretary

Membership No, ACS9245

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022
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Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Note Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end of the
No. | beginning of the year share capital year
during the year
As at March 31, 2021 1 51,200.00 - 51,200.00
As at March 31, 2022 51,200.00 - 51,200.00
B. OTHER EQUITY {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Deemed capital Retained earnings Total
No. | component reiating to
subordinated debt
As at March 31, 2021 12 70,752.21 {1,68,719.37) (97,967.16)
Loss for the year - (42,040.40) (42,040.40)
Other comprehensive income for
the year - 71.53 71.53
Total comprehensive loss for the &
year - (41,968.87) (41,968.87)
As at March 31, 2021 70,752.21 {2,10,688.24) {1,392,936.03)
L.oss for the year - (39,434.48) (39,434.48)
Other comprehensive loss for the
year - (165.09) {165.09)
Total comprehensive loss for the
year - (39,599.57) (39,599.57)
As at March 31, 2022 70,752.21 {2,50,287.81) (1,79,535.60)
Significant accounting policies 3

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1-38).

In terms of our report attached

For Shridhar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 134427W

Jitendra Sawjiany
Partner
Membership No. 050880

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022

Foraind on behalf of Board of Directors

Shéb#Edoy Mukherjee
Whole-time Director
DIN : 05151354

Virendr] Joshi
Chief Fidancial Officer

Mumbai, dated: May 11, 2022

S.V.R. Srinivas
Director
DIN : 02860903

Shivprakash Singh
Company Secretary
Membership No, AC58245




Notes forming part of financial statements

1. General information

Mumbai Metro One Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on December 22, 2006 to
undertake the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the Mass Rapid Transit
System (MRTS) for the Versova — Andheri - Ghatkopar corridor in Mumbai — Mumbai Metro.
The Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority (MMRDA), on March 7, 2007 granted
the Company a concession for a period of 35 years, for the exclusive rights to construct,
operate and charge fares to users of the Mumbai Metro in accordance with the provisions of the
concession agreement, at the close of which the Company must transfer the rights, title and
interest in the Mumbai Metro Project assets, in a serviceable condition, free of encumbrances
to MMRDA. The project commenced commercial operations from June 8, 2014.

2. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended to date.

Recent accounting pronouncements:

{a) Ind AS 116 - Leases

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116
will replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The
Standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases for both parties to a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all
leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. The
Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirementis in Ind AS 17. The effective date for adoption
of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,.2019. The directors of the
Company have evaluated the impact of this amendment which is not significant on the
Company’s financial statements.

(b) Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C,
Uncertainty over Income

Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the appendix, companies need to
determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of
tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan fo use in their income tax filing which has
to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment
when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2019. The directors of the company do not expect any impact on the
financial statements on account of this amendment.



{¢) Amendment to Ind AS 12 ~ Income taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS
12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The
amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in
profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events. Effective date for application of this amendment
is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The directors of the company do not expect
any impact on the financial statements on account of this amendment.

(d) Amendment to Ind AS 19 — plan amendment, curtailment or settlement

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, 'Employee
Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.
The amendments require an entity:

» to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the
remainder of the period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any
reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact
of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or dfter April 1,
2019. The directors of the company do not expect any material impact on the financial
statements on acccunt of this amendment.

3. Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period,
as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given at the date of the
transaction in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received {o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level
1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement date;

« Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.



The principal accounting policies are set out below.
3.1 Intangible asset and amortisation

The Mumbai Metro project is accounted as an Intangible Asset since the concession
arrangement provides only the right to access the asset for the provision of public service and
the asset is returned to the concession grantor at the end of the concession arrangement.
Thus, the Company has recognised an intangible asset to the extent it is authorized (entitled) to
charge fares from public utility users & for usage of the permissible facilities and does not have
an irrefutable right to receive cash or other financial asset from the concession grantor. The
intangible asset is initially measured at the fair value of the construction services rendered. In
making their judgment, the directors noted that the construction work of the project was
assigned to various contractors and the Company was mainly involved in smooth co-ordination
and ensuring proper execution of the project. In lieu of this, the management believes that the
fair value of the construction services rendered approximates to the cost of the construction.

The amortization of the infrastructure operation right (the intangible asset) is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the operation of the concession
period (i.e. 30 years).

Impairment of intangible asset

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible
asset to determine whether there is any indication thdt the asset has suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The Intangible asset is tested for impairment at least annually, or when there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

3.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when the Company transfers control of the promised services to the
customer. The Company measures revenue, for the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in.

Exchange for transferring promised services.

{I) Revenue from fare charged to passengers is recognized when the services are provided,
based on usage of fokens and smart cards.

LTt st it



(i) Rental income - Rental income from operating leases is recognised when the service is
transferred over time to the customer on a straight line basis, i.e. customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits of the assets provided by the Company.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3 Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and the presentation currency used in the financial
statements is Indian Rupees. In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies
other than Indian Rupees are recognised at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date of the
transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monefary items denominated in foreign
currencies are restated at the rate prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which they arise except for exchange differences arising on restatement of long-
term foreign currency monetary liabilities recognised up to March 31, 2016 on which the
Company has elected to continue the policy adopted under the previous GAAP ie. the
exchange differences on restatement thereof are adjusted to the carrying amount of the
intangible asset.

3.4 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

3.5 Grants

Amount received from the MMRDA that relate to the Mumbai Metro Project Assels has been
deducted from the gross values of the amounts capitalised.

3.6 Employee benefits

3.6.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting
period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the
asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to Statement of
Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are
categorised as follows:



« Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

» Net interest expense or income; and
* Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit
or surplus in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

3.6.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefits accruing to employees in respect of
wages and salaries, annual and sick leave expected to be availed / encashed in the next 12
months, in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

3.7 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
3.7.1 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

3.7.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.



Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

3.7.3 Current and deferred tax for the vear

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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3.8 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into acéount the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the cbligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material). The unwinding of the time value
of money is recognised as a finance cost.

The Company recognises a provision for major maintenance and overhaul expenses based on
the above principles.

3.9 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed unless the probability of an outflow of
resources is remote.

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and
Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss are
recognised immediately in profit and loss.

3.11 Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety either at amortised
cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.



3.11.1 Classification of financial asseis

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost (except for financial assets that are designated as at fair value through Statement of Profit
and Loss on initial recognition):

« The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3.11.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

3.11.3 Impairment of financial assets

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial assets that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the Company always
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables and other financial assets, the Company has used a practical expedient as
permitted under Ind AS 109. The expected credit loss allowance has been made taking into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

3.11.4 Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

3.12 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

3.12.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

3.12.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equlity.



3.12.3 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

3.12.4 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at
amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other
income’ except for foreign currency gains and losses arising on long-term monetary fiabilities
which are adjusted in the cost of the intangible asset as per the previous GAAP.

3.12.5 Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.13 Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) in accordance with Ind AS
33 on Earnings per Share.

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except where the results are anti-
dilutive.

4. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the
directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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4.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note 4.2
below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

4.1.1 Recognition of the infangible asset

The intangible asset under the service concession arrangement is initially measured at the fair
value of the construction services rendered. In making their judgment, the directors noted that
the construction work of the project was assigned to various contractors and the Company was
mainly involved in smooth co-ordination and ensuring proper execution of the project. In lieu of
this, the management believes that the fair value of the construction services rendered
approximaies to the cost of the construction.

4.2 Key sources of astimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

4.2.1 Provision for major maintenance and overhaul

The Company is required to operate and maintain the project assets in a serviceable condition
which requires periodical replacement and overhaul of certain components of project assets.
The Company has accordingly recognised a provision in respect of this obligation. The
measurement of this provision considers the future estimated cost of replacement/overhaul of
assets and the timing of replacement / overhaul. These amounts are being discounted to
present value since the time value of money is material. The carrying amount of the provision
as at March 31, 2022 is Rs. 12,089.26 lakhs (as at March 31, 2021: Rs. 12,089.26 iakhs)
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5 Intangible asset

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Right under Concession Agreement with
MMRDA

Gross carrying amount

As at March 31, 2020 3,39,807.37
Effect of foreign currency exchange difference {1,439.88)
As at March 31, 2021 3,38,367.49
Additions during the year -
Effect of foreign currency exchange difference 1,511.74
As at March 31, 2022 3,39,879.23
Accumulated amortisation

As at March 31, 2020 64,987.79
Amortisation expense 11,306.37
As at March 31, 2021 76,294.16
Amartisation expense 11,372.08
As at March 31, 2022 87,666.25
Closing net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2021 2,62,073.33
As at March 31, 2022

Concession arrangement - main features

2,62,212.98

Name of entity

Murnbai Metro One Private Limited

Description of the arrangement

The concession is granted by Mumbai Metropolitan
Region Development Authority (MMRDAY) for the
Mumbai Metrc Line-1 project on the Versova-
Andheri-Ghatkopar corridor.

Significant terms of the arrangement

Period of concession: 35 years (including 5 years for
construction)

Remuneration: Passenger fare and revenue from
advertisement and rentals etc.

Investment grant from concession grantor : Yes
Obligation of the company: To operate and maintain
the project in accordance with the reguirements of
concession agreemernt.

Infrastructure to be returned at the end of
concession period : Yes

Note : 1) Mumbai Metro Project assets mainly comprise of Civil Structures (Tracks, Stations, Viaduct,
Bridges and Depot), Equipments (Rolling Stock, Escalators, Signaling and Telecommunication systems,
Automated Fare Collection System, Lifts, Escalators and Electrical Installations).

2) Viability Gap Funding aggregating Rs. 567.23 crores received from the MMRDA that relates to Mumbai
Metro Project Assets has been deducted from the gross values of the amounts capitalized.

A it .
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6

Loans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

7

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans lo employees 3.44 9.20 3.11 12.86
Total 3.44 9.20 341 12.86
Note:

Ne amounts due from officer of the Company {Previcus year Rs. Nif)

Other financial assets

(Rs. in Lakhs}

Particulars Asg at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Security deposits - 63.14 - 103.28

Bank deposits given as margin money for

loans taken and bank guarantegs - 3.05 - 11,80

Interest accrued on bank deposits 0.07 - 0.73 -

Total 0.07 66,19 0.73 114.88

Other assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Goods and service tax balances 226.57 - 101.56 -
Income tax balances 161.68 258.10 - 212.51
Advance to Employees 6.63 3.25
Advarnce to vendors 92.25 - 71.00 -
Stores & consumables 177.53 - 24565 -
Prepaid expenses N 373.29 - 66.15 -
Totai 1,037.95 258.10 487.61 212.51
9 Trade receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Current:
Secured, considered good 515.80 100.71
Unsecured, considered good 18.61 4.59
Credit impaired . -
Less: Allowance for doubtiul debls - -
Total 534.41 105.30
Trade receivables ageing schedule {Rs. in Lakns)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment As at March 31,
2022
Less than 6 6 months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months years
Undisputed- considered good 513.82 7.50 3.99 B.95 0.15 534.41
Undispuied- which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Undisputed- credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed- considered good “ - - - - -
Disputed- which have significant increase - - - - - -
in credit risk
Disputed- credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 513.82 7.50 3.89 8.95 015 534.41
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,
2021
Undisputed- considered gaod 89.03 11.23 2.53 2.52 - 105.30
Undisputed- which have significant - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
Undisputed- credit impaired - - - - - -
Bisputed- considered good - - - - - -
Disputed- which have significant increase - - - - - -
in credit risk
Disputed- credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 89.03 11.23 2.53 2.52 - 105.30
10 Cash and cash equivalents {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 150,13 78.62
Cash on hand §55.28 38.38
Totai 205.41 117.00
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11
{a)

(b)

(c)

Share capital

{Rs. in Lakhs except number of shares)

Authorised capital As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

550,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 55,000.00 55,000.00

500,000,000 0.1% Non-Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.10 each 50,000.00 56,000.00

Total authorised share capital 1,05,000.00 1,05,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

512,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 51,200.00 51,200.00
51,200.00 51,200.00

Reconciliation of the number of shares cutstanding as at the
beginning and at the end of the year -

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

{d)

Number of shares outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of 51,20,00,000 51,20,00,000
the year

Details of equity shares held by the holding company

Particufars Number of Shares

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

37,88,80,000

37,88,80,000

(e}

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

(f)

Name of the sharehoclders

As at March 31, 2022

Number of Shares % holding
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 37,88,80,000 74.00
Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority (MMRDA) 13,31,20,000 26.00
As at March 31, 2021
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 37,88,80,000 74.00
Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority (MMRDA) 13,31,20,000 26.00

Sharehclding of promoters

Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2022

Sr. No.

1

2

(9)

Promoter Names

Reliance infrastructure

Mumbai Metropolitan

Limited Region Development
Authorily (MMRDA)
Number of Shares 37.88,80,000 13,31,20,000
% of Total Shares 74.00 26.00
% Change during the year - -
Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at March 31, 2021
Sr. No. 1 2 3
Promoter Names Reliance Infrastruciure Mumbai Metropolitan | Transdev ile de
Limited Region Development France
Authority (MMRDA)
Number of Shares 37.88,80,000 13,31,20,G00 -
% of Total Shares 74.00 26.00

% Change during the year

5.00

(5?00)

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Each shargholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Lock-in conditions for Equity Share holders:

Equity shareholding as per the Concessicn agreement between the members is subject {c the following lock-in conditions:
(i} The equity shareholding of Reliance Infrastructure Limited and Transdev ile de France shall not be less than 51% of the issued and paid
up Equity Share Capital of the Company up 1o a period of 2 years following the Commercial Operation Date (COD).
(i} The equity shareholding of Reliance Infrastructure Limited shall not be tess than 26% of the issued and paid up Equity Share Capital of

the Company up to a minimum period of 15 years following the COD.

(it} The equity shareholding of each Consortium Member other than Reliance Infrastructure Limited shall not be less than 5% of the total
issued and paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company for a minimum period of 2 years following the COD.

R g 1o
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i3

14

Other equity (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
(i) Retained eamings {Refer note {i) below) (2,49,723.19) {2,10,688.24)
(i} Deemed capital contribution 70,752.21 70,752.21
(Refer note {ii} below)
Total {1,78,970.98) {1,39,936.03)
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at Marcin 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2024

(i} Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of vear

{2,10,688.24)

{1,68,719.37)

Loss as per Statement of Profit and Loss {39,434.48) {42,040.40)
Exceptionat iIncame 564,62 -

Other comprehensive (loss)income for the vear {165.09) 71.53
Balance at the end of the year {2,49,723.1%) {2,10,688.24)

{ii) Deemed capital contribution

In terms of the rupee term loan agreements from banks dated February 12, 2013, Reliance Infrastructure Limited has extended a subordinated debt of Rs. 758 crores to
the Company. This suberdinaled debt is unsecured, interest free, nen-cenvertible and shall be repaid from avallable cash flow afier the repayment of the entire rupee term

loans.
This subordinated debt is measured at amortised cost and the day 1 fair value difference is recognised as deemed capitat contribution from Reliance Infrastructure
Limited.
Non-current borrowings {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Maturity date Terms of repayment Effective interest | As at March 31, | As at March 31,
rate 2022 2021
Secured - at amortised cost
{Refer note {a} befow)
External commercial borrewings in foreign currency Oclober 1, 2027 Repayable in 60 quarterly |8 month USD LIBOR - -
from financial institution installments commencing |rate + margin (34C to
{Refer note {b) below} from April 1, 2012, 485 basis points)
Term Ioans from banks {Refer note (b) below) March 31, 2037 Rs. 50 crores repayable  |9.60% to 10.75% - -
on March 31, 2018. The
reraining portion is
repayable in 76 quarterly
installments commencing
from June 30, 2018.
Unsecured - at amortised cost
(Refer note 12{ii}}
Subordinated debt from the holding company Interest frae 13,881.98 12.398.51
(related party)
Total 13,881.98 12,399.51
Note:

a) As per the common tupee loan agreement and foreign currency term loan faciity agreement the loans are secured by:
{i} first morigage/charge of allimmovable properties, all moveable machinery, machinery spares, equipment, rolling stock, tools and accessories, vehicles, charges on the
nen-fund based instruments and all other moveable assels, all other intangible assets both present and future, save and except project assels:
i) flest mortgage/charga on all receivables, escrow accounts, bapk accounts, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, both present and future;

The above securilies rank pari passu 1o the security interest created in favor of the Rupee term foans and the buyers credit facilties avaliled from banks.

bj The Company has not been sble 1o comply with the financial covenants during the year in respect of non-payment of Rs. 128.37 crores towards inslaliments of ECB
loan, Rs.786.34 crores towards interest and Rs. 27.91 crores towards penal interest {not provided for) for the period from April 2018 to March 2022, Accordingly, the loans
have been classified as current in the financial statements,

Current borrowings

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Secured {Refer note 13(a) above)

External commercial borrowings in foreign currency 42,713.28 41,201.54
from financial institution {In USD £6.236 Mn @

75.7925) {As at March 31, 20217 In USD 56.36 @

73.11) {Refer note 13{b) above}

Term loans from barks (Refer note 13(b) above} 1,28,403.83 1,28 412.70
Unsecured

Loans from holding company - repayable on 53,557,692 53,557.69
demand

Total 2,24,674,90 2,23,171.93
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15 Trade payables

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
- total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and 117.96 549.95
small enferprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 3,111.67 3,806.17
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total 3,229.63 4,356.12
Trade payables ageing schedule {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from the due date of payment As at March 31,
2022
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 Total
years
MSME 105.26 0.94 0.26 11.50 1i7.96
Others 1,679.05 375.90 53.68 464.68 257331
Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues- Others - 538.36 - - 538.36
Total 1,784.31 815.20 53,94 476.18 3,229.63
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,
2021t
MSME 524.50 12.97 11.74 0.74 545,95
Others 2,3858.68 167.60 19.18 692.43 3,267.89
Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues- Others 538.28 - - - 538.28
Total 3,451.46 180.57 3G.92 693.17 4,356.12
16 Other financial liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Securily deposits received from customers 74486 877.20 ©94.85 958.29
Interest accrued 1.04,920.41 - 75,943,689 -
Credilors for capital expenditure - MSME - - 141.15 -
Creditors for capital expenditure - Others 16,790.61 - 20,387.55 -
Total 1,24,455.88 877.20 97,i47.54 958.29
17 Provisions {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absences 186.98 45.39 184.75 52.68
Gratuity - 21.92 - 32.69
Cther provisions
Provision for major maintenance and overhaul - 12,089.26 . 12,089,286
expenses
Total 186.98 12,158.57 194.75 12,174.63
Petails of movement in other provisions - Major maintenance and overhaul
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Opening balance 12,088.26 12,089.26
Additional pravisions recognised - -
Unwinding of discount - -
Closing balance 12,089.26 12,088.26
18 Other current liabilities {Rs. in Lakbs)
Pariiculars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Advance from customers 2,051.81 1,229.15
Statulcry remittarices §575.46 20€.49
Others 8.32 24.95
Total 2,635.59 1,460.59

R
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Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lakbs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021t

a) Income from collection of fares from passengers 9,472.53 2,610.35
b) Other operating income
- Rental 1,482.45 934.41
- Advertisement 1,100.C7 600,89
- Others 2.814.85 080.82
Total 14,869.93 5,126.47

20

Other income

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particutars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Interest income (sarned on financial assets that are not designated as at fair
value through profit and [05s)
- Interest income on bank deposit (a2t amorlised cost) - 0.35
- Other interest income (at amertised cost) 1.34 19.89
c) Other non-operating income
- Gthers 254,45 662.57
d} Cther (iosses) and gains
- {Losses)/gains on foreign currency transactions {(171.83) 433.15
Total 83.96 1,115.96
21 Qperating expenses {Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Electricity expenses 1,898.91 1.375.72
Operalion & maintenance expenses 162.76 115.63
Securily expenses 392.05 31747
Housekeeping expensas 602.82 753.87
Cther repairs and maintenance :
- Building 0.68 10.9%
- Plant and machinery 635.64 413.07
- Others 946.73 970.25
Total 4,739.59 3,957.70
22 Employee benefits expense {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salary and wages 5,380.00 3.126.92
Confribution 1o provident and other funds 235.07 189.72
Staif welfare expenses 221.24 243.62
Total 5,836.31 3,560.26
23 Finance costs {Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{a) interest costs -
- Interest on loans (other than those from related party) 17,667.90 16,564.09
- Interest on loans from related party 4,978.89 4,978.89
- Inferest on foreign currency loans 6,329.63 4,894.87
Total interest expense for financial liabilities not classified as fair vaiue through
prefit and loss 28.976.42 26,437.85
- Others - delayed payment of taxes 38.80 1.34
(b) Other borrowing costs :-
- Unwinding of discounts on subordinated debts 1,452.48 1,323.84
- Otker finance charges 1.52 61.02
1.484.00 1.384.86
Total 30,499.22 27,824.05
24 Other expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ren, rates and taxes 49.42 38.52
Insurance 772,30 734.55
Legal and professional charges 633.86 497.56
Provision for additional Fability towards capex vendors {Net) - 0.05
Miscellaneous expenses 485.58 383.77
Total 1,941,116 1,634.45
Note {i):
Legal and professional charges include payment to auditors as follows:
a) for audit 12.50 12.50
b} for other services 4.50 4.50
¢} for reimbursement of expenses 0.31 0.60
Total 17.91 17.60
25]Exceplional Incame on accoun of reversal of creditors for capitzl expenditure : During the year, the Company has written back very

old credil batances of credilers where the amounis are no longer payable.
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26 Contingent liabilities

a)iClaims against the Company not acknowledged as | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
debts
(i) Claims by MMRDA:
- for damages for delay in achieving project 1.64,380.01 1,64,380.01
milestones and completion of the project
- for fares charged in violation of the Concession 6,187.00 6,187.00
Agreement
- for rent 3,578.79 3,578.79
- for concessions in custom duty 3,900.00 3,900.00
- for consultancy charges 200.00 200.00
(i} Claims of suppliers against the Company 1,668.06 15,148.00
{iii) Demand for non-agricultural assessment tax 1.144.90 1,120.43
Total 1,81,058.76 1,94,514.23

b) The Municipal Carporation of Greater Mumbai {(MCGM) denied the exemplion to the Cempany from payment of municipal taxes
and octroi. In March, 2022, the Company received attachment wamants from MCGM demanding property tax and penalty
amounting to Rs 134.16 Crores. The Company has filed a Wril Petition in Bombay High Court on March 28, 2022 against the
attachment warrants seeking reliefs. The High courl has ordered MCGM on March 29, 2022 not to take any coercive action
against the Company and to file its Affidavit in reply. Next date of hearing is yet to be fixed by the Court.

¢) The Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs, Government of India had constituled a fresh Fair Fixation Committee (FFC) on
November 28, 2018 for the purpose of recemmending the metro fare for Mumbai Metro One Private Limited (MMOPL). The FFC
vide its Order dated March 11, 2019 had recommended a fare structure of Rs. 10 to Rs. 35 and had reduced the existing fares. --
MMOPL has filed a Writ Petition challenging the same on June 07, 2019. Matier was heard on June 20, 2018. Hon'ble High
Court of Mumbai has granted Stay on the FFC recommendations. The matter is sub-judice. The last hearing was held on
November 08, 2019. Next date of hearing is yet to be fixed by the Court.

d) The Company has filed various claims against Mumbai Mefropolitan Region Development Authority (MMRDA) on account of
damages incurred due to delays by MMRDA in handing over of unencumbered Right of Way and land, and additional cost
incurred due to various changes in design to accommodate project encumbrances. The amount of claims filed against MMRDA
aggregate Rs.1,766.25 creres. MMRDA has not accepted the said claims filed by the Company and hence the Company had
inittated arbitration proceedings as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement. The arguments before the Arbitration
Tribunai have been completed and the Award is reserved, The Company expects favorable Arbitration Award by June 2022,

27 As atl March 31, 2022, the accumulaled losses have ercded the net worth of the Company and the current liabilities have
exceeded its current assets.
The Company has shown year-on-year grawth in passenger traffic and revenues il FY20. During FY21, metro operations were
suspended for 7 months from March-2020 te October-2020 due o Covid lockdown orders received from government authorities.
Metro Operation resumed w.e.f. Oclober 18, 2020, however with Covid restrictions and social distancing protocols. Due to this
metro ridership conlinues to be lower till date. The Company is entitted to get the extension of the concessien period to
compensate for the continuing revenue losses.
The overall infrastructure facility of the Company has a long useful life and the remaining period of concession is approximately
23 years. Company is in aclive discussion with its bankers for restructuring of their loans. Due o covid shutdown and continuing
restrictions thereafter, Lenders have asked the Company to revise the Resolution Plan by incorporating the financial impact of the
shutdown and continuing lower ridership. Company has engaged EY for preparing the revised Resclution Plan and will submit it
to Lenders for appraval ance ready.
The Parent Company has given a letter of comfort to lenders for giving necessary support. Accordingly, the financial statements
of Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. Company is taking a number of steps to improve overall commercial
viability which will result in an improvement in cash flows and enable the Company to meei its financial obligations.
Based on the foregaing, the going concern assumption is considered o be appropriate.

28 Related party disclosures

a) List of related parties

Description of relationship Names of related parties

1. Holding company Reliance Infrastructure Limited

2. Investing party / Related party {i) Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development
Authority

{iiy Maha Mumbai Metro (M3) Operation
Corporation Limited

3. Enterprises where holding company has significant |{i) Metro One Operation Private Limited
influence {ii} Mumbai Metro Transport Private Limited

4. Key management personnel Mr. Shubhodoy Mukherjee - Whole-time Direclor

e T |
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Related party disclosures (contd..)

b} Details of related party transactions

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Income:

Other Income (Training Income}

- Maha Mumbai Metro (M3) Operation Corporation Limited 60.59 51.22
Reimbursement of expenses incurred for:

- Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority 44.07 45.92
Expenses:

Rent / lease- charges

- Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority 0.99 0.99
Repairs and maintenance-Others

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 9.60 -
Interest expenses

- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 4,978.89 4,978.89

ORI i s e ron

c¢) Balances outstanding at the end of the year:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Payabies
- Metro One Operation Private Limited 266.16 266.18
- Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authorily 28712 280.08
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 26,290.84 21,307.56
Receivables
- Maha Mumbai Metro (M3) Operation Corporation Limited 6.22 -
d) Loans from related party
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current borrowings
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 53,557.69 53,557.69
Subordinated debt
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited 13,881.98 12,399.51
(movement during the year is conseguent to unwinding of discount on
subordinated debt)
e)|Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Deemed capital contribution on issue of subordinated debt
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 70,752.21 70,752.21
f) Compensation of key management personnel
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Compensation of key management personnel 71.00 54.12
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29 Segment reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of aperating and maintaining the Mass Rapid Transit System for
Versova- Andheri-Ghatkopar comridor in Mumbai, which in the ¢context of Ind AS 108 on Operating Segment,

constitutes a single reperiable segment.

30 Leasing transactions

a} Cperating lease rentals during the year:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Rent paid- depot and other premises

0.98

.99

Re. 1 per sqm is paid as rent for depot and other premises in accordance with the concession agreement.

1} The future minimum lease payments in respect of non-cancelable |

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Due not later than one year 0.99 0.99
Due later than one year and not later than five years 3.95 3.95
Due later than five years 16.98 17.97
21,92 22.91

¢) The Company has provided space on operating lease for periods ranging from 1 fo 15 years with a non-cancellable
pedod at the beginning of the agreement ranging from 1 to 5 years.

Future minimum lease payments expected to be received under non-cancellable leases:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2024
Due not later than ane year 193.43 257.44
Due jater than one year and not later than five years 182,61 376.02
Due fater than five years - -
376.02 633.46

31 Earnings per share

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended March

March 31, 2022 31, 2029
l.oss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company {38,869.86) (42,040.40)
(Rs.)
Weighted average number of equity shares 51,20,06,000 51,20.00,000
Nominal value per share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic earnings per share (Rs.) {7.59) {8.21)
Diluied earnings per share {Rs.) {7.58) {8.21)

{see note below)

Note. There are no outlstanding dilutive potential equity shares.

32 Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

(i) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining
unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

(iiy The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of
section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2606 afong with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appeinled day
during each accounting year

(i) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyend
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at
the end of each accounting year

{v} The amount of furlher interest remaining due and
payable even in the succeeding years, unti such date when
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpese of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micre, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

117.96

47.20

95.13

690C.96

20.87

58.08

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the management. This has been refied upon by the auditors.
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33 Employee benefit obligations

(i} Defined contribution plans

The Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payrolf cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only

obligaiion of the company with respect {o the refiremen! benefit plan is to make the specified contribution. The total expense recognised in fhe

Statement of Profit and Loss represents contributions payable to these plans by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

The Company has recognised the following amounts as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particuiars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contribution to provideni furd 200.09 156.36
Contribution to superannuation fund 3.55 4,94
Contribution to national pension scheme 14.32 14.05
Contribution to employees’ state insurance corporation 17.11 14.37
Total 235.07 > 189.72

(ii} Defined benefit plan

The Company sponsors funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The defined benefit plan is administered by a third-party insurer.
This thied-party insurer is responsibte for the investment policy with regard to the assets of the plan,

Under the plan, the employees are entitled 10 a lump-sum amounting to 15 days’ final basic salary for each year of compleled service payable at
the time of retirement/resignation provided the employee has completed 5 years of continuous servics.

2

a) The plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks such as: invesiment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a
discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end
of the reporiing period on government bonds.

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the bend inlerest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longevity risk

The preseni vaiue of the defined benefil ptan liability is calculated by
reference to the best estimate of the mertality of plan participants. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan participanis will increase the
plan's Hability.

Salary risk

The preseni value of the defined benefil plan Eability is calculated by
reference to the future salaries of plan pariicipants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

b) The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 20214

Discount rate

Expected rale of salary increase

Average longevity at refirement age for current beneficiaries of the
plan (years)

Rate of employee turnover

6.84%
8.00%

6.57%
5.00%

Indian assured lives mortality (2012-14) ultimate

12.00%]

10.00%

c) Amouni recegnised in Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of the defined benefit plan

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 43,75 64,16
Net interest cost 215 2.48
Past service cost - -
Compoenents of defined benefit costs recognised in profit and
loss. 51.80 66.64
Remeasurements on the net defined benefit liability :
- Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 17.84 10.25
- Acluarial losses from change in demographic assumptions 3.75 7.24
- Actuarial losses/{gains) from change in financial assumptions 66.99 (75.40)
- Actuarial losses/(gains) from change in experience adjustmenis 76.51 {13.62)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income 165.09 {71.53)
Total 216.99 {4.89)

The current service cost, past service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee benefits expense’ line item in

the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income

L oo



Mumbai Metro One Private Limited

Notes to accounts forming part of financial statements
{Rs. in Lakh}

d) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as foliows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (550.47) {388.98)
Fair value of plan assets 528.55 356.28
Net {liability)/assets arising from defined benefit obligation {21.92) (32.70}

e) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obiigation are as foliows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening defined benefit obligation 388.98 473.12
Current service cost 49.75 64.16
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 25.55 31.18
Liability transferred to Company on account of employees taken over
from group company (Refer note 17) - -
Remeasurements {(gains)/losses:
- Actuarial loss from change in demographic assumptions 375 7.24
- Acluarial loss from change in financiat assumplions 66.99 (75.40}
- Actuarial loss from change in experience adjusiments 76.51 (13.82)
Benefits paid (61.06) (97.70}
Closing defined benefit obligation 550.47 388.93

f) Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Far the year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening fair value of plan assels 356.28 435.53
Interest income 23.41 28.70
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:

- Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (17.84) (10.25)
Asset transferred to Company on account of employees taken over

from group company “ .
Contributions to the fund 227.76 -
Benefits paid (61.06} (97.70)
Closing fair value of plan assets 528.55 356.28

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined cbiigation are discount rale, expected salary increase and employee
turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have peen delermined based on reasonably possible changes of the respeclive assumptions cccursing al
the end of the reporiing pericd, while hoiding all other assumptions constant.

if the discount rate is 100 basis points highez/(lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease bty Rs.29.16 lakhs (increase by Rs. 32.88
lakhs) (as at March 31, 2021: decrease by Rs. 21.00 lakhs (increase by Rs. 23.77 lakhs)}

If the expecied salary growth increases/{decreases) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 28.99 lakhs (decrease by Rs.
26.45 lakhs) (as at March 31, 2021: increase by Rs. 23.06 lakhs (decrease by Rs. 20.94 lakhs))

If the employee turnover increases/(decreases) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs. 2.95 lakhs {increase by Rs, 3.19
lakhs) {as at March 31, 2021: decrease by Rs. 1.71 lakhs {increase by Rs. 2.01 lakhs})

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the aclual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumplions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same 2s that applied in calculaling the defined benefit asse!
recognised in ihe balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and actuarial assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

g) Breakup of Plan Assets
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents 436.41 356.29
Insurer managed funds 92.14 (0.61)
Total 528.55 356.28
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34 Financial instruments

a} Capital management

The company’s capital management objectives is to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing services commensurately with the
level of risk.

The Company is not subject to externally enforced capital regulation.

b) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2022 2021

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost:

Trade receivables 534.41 105.30

Cash and cash equivalents 205.41 117.00

Loans 12.64 15.98

Other financial assets 66.25 115.81

Total 818.71 353.88

Financial liabilities

Measured at amortised cost:

Borrowings 2,38.556.89 2,35,571.44

Trade payables 3,229.63 4,386.12

Other financial liabilities 1,25,333.08 98,105.84

Total 3,67,119.60 3,38,033.40

¢} Financial risk management framewaork

The Company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

{i} CREDIT RISK

Credit risk managemant

Credil risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its contraclual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss to the Company. The company's
business model is such that it works purely on a cash basis for its fare revenue {which is the predominant source of revenue}. Therefore there is
insignificant credit risk. In case of non fare revenue, the Company has a policy of enly dealing with creditworthy counterparties and cbtaining
sufficient security deposits, where practicable, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

{if} LIQUIDITY RISK

{a} Liquidity risk management
The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring ferecast and acluai cash flows. Furlher, in case of operationat cash shortfalis,
the Company can obtain shert term funding from the holding company.

(b) Maturities of financiat liabilities

The following table detaifs the Company's remaining contraciual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The amount disclosed in the {ables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Company can be required 1o pay. The table include both interest and principal cash flows. The future cash flows are expected to
vary based on future interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The amounts in this disclosure have been derived based on the inlerest rates and
foreign exchange rates at the end of the respective reporting periods. Therefore the actual cash flows are subject to change if there are changes
in variable interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

The contractuai maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Less than 1 Yaar 1-3 Years 3 Years to § Years |5 years and above
Financial liabilities

31-Mar-22

Borrowings 2,24,674.90 - - 75,900.00
Trade payables 3,229.63 - - -
Other financial fiabilities 1,24,455.88 337.70 171.04 368 45
Total 3,52,360.41 337.70 171.04 76,268.46
31-Mar-21

Borrowings 2,23,171.93 - - 75,900.00
Trade payables 4,356.12 - - -
Other financial liabilities 97,147.54 89.46 422.39 446.45
Total 3,24,675.59 89.46 422.39 76,346.45

{iii} Market risk

Market risk is the zisk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in markel prices. The
company is exposed to 2 types of market risks nameiy currency risk and interest rate risk. The company manitors the risks arising out of these on
a regular basis with the help of the helding company treasury team. Further the company may enter into derivatives if the exposure arising out of
these risks exceeds significantly.

{a)} Currency risk

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. y
Exposure to currency fisk relates primarily 1o the Company's operating activities and berrowings when transactions are denominated in a different
currency from the Company's functional currency. o
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Financial instruments (contd..}

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows.

Particulars Currency As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Amounts in Amournt Amounts in Amount
foreign currency foreign currency
Capital creditors uso 1,48,51,357.55 11,256.22 | 1,69,85,921.99 12,425.72
EUR 9,85,857.24 830.29 9,82,504.67 842.50
GBP 1.232.00 1.23 1,232.00 T 1.24
Secured loans ush 5,63,55,550.67 42,712.28 | 5,63,55,550.67 41.201.54

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, with all other variables held
censtant. The impact on the Company's loss before lax and equity is due to changes in the carrying value of monetary assets and liabilities other
than secured loans since the exchange differences in respect of these loans are adjusted to the carrying amount of the intangible asset. However
these exchange differences will affect future amortisation of the intangible asset. The Company's exposure to foreign currency changes for ail other
currencies is not material.

Particulars Currency | Change inrate Effect on loss
before tax and pre-
- tax equity
March 31, 20622
Based on YOY usp +10% (1,125.62)
change between Uso -10% 1.125.62
FY2021 & FY2022 EUR +10% (83.03}
EUR -10% 83.03

March 31, 2021
Based on YOY

change between uso +10% {1,242.57)
FY2020 & FY2021 ush -10% 1,242.57
ELR +10% (84.25)
EUR -10% . 84.25

(b} Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relales primarily to the Company's borrowings with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on exposure to interest rate for variable rate borrowings at the end of reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of lizbility outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.

The following table demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on variable rate borrowings with all other
variables held constant, the Company's profii before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Interest Increase / Effect on loss
basis decrease in | before tax and pre-
basis points tax equity
March 31, 2022 Base rate
+ Spread +100 {1,284.04}
LIBOR +50 {251.25)
Base rate
+ Spread -1Q0 1,284.04
LIBOR -50 251.25
March 31, 2021 Base rate
+ Spread +100 {1.284.13)
LIBOR +50 {242.36)
Base rate
+ Spread -100 1,284.13
LIBOR -50 242.36
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35

Tax disclosures

Deferred tax

(i) Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in relation to accumulated losses and depreciation on consideration of prudence.

(i)

36

37

(a)
(b)

(h)

i)

it
(k)

Unused tax losses

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Unused tax losses on which no deferred
tax assets have been recognised are
attributable to the following:

Unabsorbed depreciation 1,87,885.83 1,69,014.16
Accumulated business losses 61,342.54 53,409.16
Total 2,49,228.37 2,22,423.32

Note: The accumulated business losses would start io get expire from 2023. The unabserbed depreciation can be carried

forward indefinitely under the tax laws.

Fair value disclosures

The management considers that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial
statements approximates their fair values because of short term nature of certain financial assets and liabilities. In case of iong
term financial liabilities from third parties the interest rates are periodically reset to market interest rates. Further in case of the
subordinated debt the carrying value and the fair value thereof at the respective reporting dates are refiected below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Subordinated debt from helding company 13,861.98 9,853.40 12,399.51 8,600.42

Total 13,881.98 9,853.49 12,399.51 8,600.49

Nole: The above fair value has been categorised into level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, The above fair value has been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most
significant input being the discouni rate that reflects the credit risk of the Company.

Ratio disclosures

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Explanation

Current ratio

Debt-Equity ratio

Debt service coverage ratio (%)
Return on equity ratio (%)
Inventory furnover ratio

Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit/ {loss) ratio (%}

Return on capital employed (%)

Return on investment

0.01

0.22

(23.77)

(265.20)

(8.86)

0.002
(0.14)
(8.73)

(47.38}

0.05
0.02

0.85

{63.52)

(820.07)

(22.49)

Turnover impacied due to Covidig

during FY 20-21

Turnover impacted dug to Covidi9

during FY 20-21

Turnover impacted due to Covid19

during FY 20-21
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(i}

(i

—_—

(ifi)

{iv)
(v
{vi)

—

(vii)
(viii)

(ix)

{x}
(xi)

in Lakh)

Details of numerator and denominator for computing the above ratios

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Current ratio
Current assets
Current Liability

Debt-Equity ratic

Debt

Shareholder's equity

Debht service coverage ratio
Net operating income (EBITDA)
Debt service

Net profit /(loss)

tnventory

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Turnover

Capital employed

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Capital employed

EBIT

Investment

1,781.29
3,65,182.98

13,881.98
(1,27.771.00)

2,436.83
30,507.99

(39,434.48)
177.53
534.41
3,229.63
14,869.93
2,54,327.74
3,55,182.98

(1,00,855.24)

(8,935.26)

713.79
3,26,330.95

12,389.51
(88,736.02)

(2,909 97)
33,330.29
(42,040.38)
245,65
105.30
4,356.14
5,126.47
2,63,127.36
3,26,330.95
(63,203.58)

(14,216.34)

38 The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on May 11, 2022.

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements (1-38).
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